



GLENN R. TANNER, P.E. Principal Engineer

Education:

Bachelor of Science, Mechanical Engineering University of Southern California

Summary:

As Principal Engineer of Marketable Engineered Projects, LLC (dba Maximum Energy Professionals "MEP") Glenn has more than 40 years of experience in engineering design and project management. His experience includes M-E-P engineering and design, plant management, engineering supervision, project engineering, plant operations, maintenance, environmental design, energy petroleum inspection, CA Air Resources Board (South Coast Air Quality Management District "SCAQMD") gas emission reporting and permits, chemical processing, power production, district heating and cooling systems, and construction defect expert witness services. Glenn is a leading expert in Sustainability Services and is one of the Top ENERGY STAR Professional Engineers in the U.S. Glenn has been honored by the EPA as Energy Star Service Provider Partner of the Year 2016 and 2017, and recently received the coveted EPA Energy Star Service Provider Partner of the Year Sustained Excellence award 2018 through 2022 for his outstanding service and expertise with the ENERGY STAR program.

Company History:

Principal Engineer, Glenn Tanner, founded "*GRT & Associates, Inc.*", an engineering consulting company, in Torrance, CA in 1990. From 1990 to 2004, the company specialized in Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing design for small power plants, cogeneration facilities, and general heating, ventilation, and air conditioning systems, as well as energy conservation services such as energy audits, and environmental and remediation projects. *GRT & Associates* customers included cities and municipalities, healthcare facilities, industrial warehouse projects, and large commercial buildings. In 2005, the original company, *GRT & Associates, Inc.*, became, "*Marketable Engineered Projects LLC*" (also known as "*Marketable Ventures*"). The new company added to its original services of engineering design and energy services, and expanded its scope to add property services (property management and property condition assessments) and construction services. *Marketable Engineered Projects* has grown and expanded, through repeat and referral business from an expanding list of loyal and satisfied clients. The company



recently became **Maximum Energy Professionals** "MEP" in order to more accurately what they do best, which is to assist their customers in efforts to create maximum energy conservation and maximum sustainability, with maximum energy cost savings to boost their bottom line.



Firm Summary:

MEP, LLC provides energy conservation, mechanical/energy conservation/electrical/plumbing design engineering projects, including LEED Existing Building Certification, tenant improvement design, or central plant / HVAC equipment replacement projects. In addition to Energy Star and LEED certification procedures, including Level I and Level II energy audits and commissioning services, Marketable Engineered Projects, LLC, dba MAXIMUM ENERGY PROFESSIONALS ("MEP") is a full service mechanical, electrical, plumbing (M-E-P) and energy-conservation design firm and is a Certified Local Small Business Enterprise. MEP is staffed with experienced professional engineers specializing in building and rehabilitating mechanical/heating ventilation and air conditioning and plumbing facilities, combining comprehensive energy evaluations and project design services for large and small commercial, industrial, institutional, medical, hospitality, and educational facilities. In addition, MEP is extremely experienced in due diligence property condition assessment reports. Please take a look at our website, www.mep-llc.com for a summary of our firm's experience.

Specific experience and expertise in the field of energy conservation, mechanical/electrical/ plumbing (MEP) design, and facilities engineering services includes:

- * Process Plant / Petrochemical Design
- * Energy Audits
- * Industrial Mechanical-Plumbing Design
- * Cogeneration
- * Due Diligence MEP-FP Inspections
- * Risk Management & Prevention Plans

- * Oil Field / Refining Processing Design
- * HVAC System Design
- * Electrical & Utility Engineering
- * Gas Fired Cooling & Thermal Storage
- * Tenant Improvement MEP Engineering
- * Project Management Services

Construction Defect Expert Witness Summary:

Maximum Energy Professionals "MEP" has been assisting our commercial, industrial, shopping center, multi-family, medical, educational, and hospitality customers as construction defect expert witness since 1990. Our firm serves as construction expert witness, and testifies on various aspects of the construction process, including issues involving construction maintenance, destructive testing, construction defects, and construction management. We provide reports regarding construction mediation, construction scheduling, construction standards of care, and construction cost estimates. We also testify on forensic construction investigations, construction defects, general contractors, licensed contractors, and construction disputes.

Page 3



Construction Defect Expert Witness Sample Projects:

Client: The TASA Group, Inc., Expert Witness Farrah Lane vs. Costco Wholesale Corporation

Client: The TASA Group, Inc., Expert Witness Lin vs. Panini Kabob

Client: Voss Cook & Thell LLP Trial Prep, Expert Witness Deposition Anaheim Professional Building, 1801 Romneya Dr., Anaheim CA

Client: Lewis Brisbois Bisgaard & Smith LLP Construction Defect Expert Witness Sierra Sands School District, Ridgecrest CA

Client: Leisure World Controls System Construction Defect Leisure World, 24112 Moulton Pkwy, Laguna Woods, CA

Client: VCT Law HVAC Investigation; E&O and Workmanship 3211 La Cienega Blvd, Los Angeles CA

Past Employment History:

Bryant and Associates, Inc., Torrance, CA - 1989-1990

Vice President Environmental and Engineering

Served as principal of Engineering division for *Bryant & Associates* which includes Environmental Engineering, Civil / Structural Engineering, Construction Management Services, Mechanical / Energy Engineering, and Land Surveying capabilities. Responsible for the overall design, proposals, engineering services, costs, customer satisfaction, plus marketing for new business. Increased billing by 50% within one year, increased staff size, upgraded personnel, and improved content and accuracy of deliverables. Built new *JKBA* practice in Energy / Mechanical Engineering field and greatly expanded number of environmental projects.

Recent projects include contaminated soils & groundwater assessments and remediation projects using a variety of available methods at several sites throughout Southern California. Also performed are Phase 1 Assessments, asbestos sampling, hazardous materials evaluations, and underground storage tank removals. Upgraded boilers and internal combustion engines / turbines to meet SCAQMD regulations and improve efficiency.

Pacific Energy / Central Plants, Inc. (CPI) - 1987 – 1989

Plant Manager - Century City, Bunker Hill, and Greyhound Los Angeles Plants



Mr. Tanner was responsible for all aspects of operations for three plant locations (replacement value: \$85 million) comprising 38,000 of the company's 48,000 installed cooling tons; 80% of company's assets replacement value; 65% of the company's annual sold ton-hours; yearly expense budgets totaling \$10 million. The Century City HVAC plant is the largest on the West Coast (22,000 installed tons).

As Plant Manager, Mr. Tanner managed a combined crew of twenty-five people (supervisors, licensed steam engineers, operation engineers, mechanics, and assistants) at three plant locations. He had bottom line responsibility for all costs of sales (fuel costs), operating costs, and maintenance costs. Mr. Tanner brought aging and neglected power plants up to current standards. He also provided hazard operation & maintenance plans and air toxins surveys for each facility. Mr. Tanner's specific accomplishments at *CPI* included reducing total O&M costs at these locations by \$1,100,000 in 1989 vs. 1988 (21% reduction) and improved plants' thermal efficiencies including raising output / input ratio at Bunker Hill from 84% to 100% in 1989.

Prior to becoming Plant Manager, Mr. Tanner was the Engineering and Construction Manager for *CPI*. His responsibilities included the overall performance of the CPI Engineering & Construction group that consisted of Process Engineers, Project Engineers, Construction Coordinator, Designers, and Technical Assistants. His specific duties were: Performed all group personnel leadership functions such as appraisals, performance planning, and salary administration; set job priorities, and supervised group efforts for operations and maintenance support.

Mr. Tanner was hired as the first *CPI* Project Engineer and was then promoted to Manager where he completed forming the group by hiring a Process Engineer, Construction Coordinator, Drafter, and Technician. He obtained two new energy customers (first for CPI in ten years). Mr. Tanner improved plant-operating costs at all locations including lowering chilled water production cost at Bunker Hill from \$7.50 per Million Btu to \$5.40 (yearly savings.

Chevron USA, Inc. - El Segundo Refinery - 1977-1987

Project Manager - Pipeline Leak Prevention Program. As Project Manager for Chevron, Mr. Tanner formulated and implemented a \$10 million refinery-side task force to eliminate buried pipelines as sources of groundwater pollution. He coordinated the design group to install leak prevention and detection methods and he evaluated experimental methods of detecting hydrocarbon leaks below the ground surface.

As *Maintenance Supervisor*, Mr. Tanner conceived and implemented the chemical cleaning and hydro-blasting group in addition to controlling the division capital budget, and performed an economic evaluation of all projects. Mr. Tanner designed and supervised a computerized work activity sampling program and set up a division technical hiring program. His assignments as plant shutdown supervisor and turnaround coordinator were for major maintenance projects between \$1 and \$12 million. Mr. Tanner also served as *Major Project Engineer* where he



supervised contract engineers and designers on several capital projects over \$1 million. He defined project parameters, critical path schedule, priorities, and quality standards and was responsible for contract training and appraisals.

While with Chevron, Mr. Tanner served as a *Facilities Planning Engineer* which included the designing, estimating, and analyzing rate of returns, and preparing large expenditure requests (over \$1 million) for final design and construction. As *Design Engineer* for Chevron, Mr. Tanner worked on the design and construction of capital and maintenance projects in the Fluid Catalytic Cracking Unit, Catalytic Reformer, Low Sulfur Fuel Oil Division, Alkylation plant, and gasoline/ ammonia/LPG loading facilities.

Mr. Tanner's responsibilities also included serving as *Recruiting Coordinator* for Chevron at nine universities throughout the county. In this capacity, he reviewed campus interview files, offered plant visits, interviewed candidates, and formulated salary offers. He was responsible for hiring thirty-one engineers in one year, a refinery record.

Professional Registrations & Activities:

- Registered Mechanical Engineer California M-20147; Arizona 60831; Nevada 023551; Oklahoma 29104; Utah 9358622-2202
- Registered Environmental Assessor No. REA-03101, California
- Association of Energy Engineers, Southern California Chapter (AEE)
- Association of Professional Energy Managers (APEM)
- International Conference of Building Officials (ICBO)
- National Fire Protection Association (NFPA)

Community Activities:

- Former Vice Chairman, City of Palos Verdes Estates Planning Commission
- Former Chairman, City of Torrance Planning Commission
- Past President USC School of Engineering Dean's Circle
- Past President Hollywood Riviera Homeowners Association
- Graduate Leadership Torrance South Bay





